TOWN OF HADDAM
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING
VIA GOTOMEETING
WEDNESDAY, 10 MARCH 2021
APPROVED MINUTES
Approved as Amended at the 13 October 2021 Meeting

ATTENDANCE

X | Prem Aithal, Vice Chairman

X | Kate Anderson, Chairman

A | Cortney Emschwiller Swokla

X | Mike Farina

X | David Law

X | Mark Lundgren

X | Cindy MacNeil Sola

X | Robin Munster

X | John Pember

X | Doreen Staskelunas, Secretary
A | Bob McGarry, First Selectman
X | Bunny Hall Batzner, Recording Clerk

1. Call to Order

Ms. Anderson, chairman, called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

The pledge was recited.

3. Approval of Agenda

Add: Under New Business: Discuss Ending the Christmas Lighting Event.

MOTION: Doreen Staskelunas motioned to approve the 10 March 2021 agenda as amended. Mike

Farina second. Motion carried unanimously.

4. Public Comment

There was no one from the public in attendance.

5. Old Business

a. Mucket Day

Mr. Lundgren reported there is serious interest in holding a tractor parade and a date would need to be
picked (possibly August before school starts). Mr. Lundgren talked about having a band at the gazebo,
inviting food trucks to participate, and roping off an area for antique tractors. Mr. Lundgren stated at this
time he would not recommend a biathlon as it would take a lot of planning. Date for tractor parade to be

secured at the April meeting.




Mrs. Sola recommended that Greg McKenna, Nutmeg Pharmacy, be included in this event especially
after all his support with the project. Mr. Lundgren felt that would be great. Mrs. Sola stated Mr. Mc-
Kenna would like to know when the statue will arrive and when the event will take place.

Mrs. Staskelunas asked if there was a cost associated with this event and if so, is there funding. Mr.
Lundgren stated he will contact the band that was scheduled to play at last year’s event and provide an
update. Mr. Lundgren suggested prizes for fanciest tractor, oldest tractor, etc. Mrs. Staskelunas asked if
the mini muckets were still being ordered. Ms. Anderson stated she did ask for pricing and did not hear
back. Ms. Anderson will call the company.

Ms. Anderson stated costs for this event could be covered under next year’s budget. Mr. Law suggested
holding this event with another group in order to split the costs.

b. Merchants’ Association

Ms. Anderson reported that Bob McGarry, First Selectman, has spoken to Larry Maggi who is still on
board with this proposal. Ms. Anderson stated EDC would assist in collecting the data, but there is no
intent to manage this long term.

Ms. Anderson reviewed a proposed application for interested merchants. Items covered: name of busi-
ness, owner/contact name, address, phone, email, website, physical store front, own/rent, describe
business (need to know services offered), and if interested in a leadership position. Ms. Anderson stated
Mr. Law had made a suggestion at the last meeting, but could not remember the specifics. Mr. Law
stated perhaps the form should be simple such as are you a business owner and would you like to see
Haddam have a merchants’ association; and once they do that, then offer a brief questionnaire. A brief
discussion followed.

Mr. Law stated rather than asking them about the merchants’ association, ask them for information for a
directory of the businesses in Haddam. Mr. Law stated some may want to be in a directory but not part of
an association.

Mr. Lundgren stated he has spoken to Mr. Maggi over the past couple of months in regard to how the
businesses will survive during the construction over the next few years. Of particular concern is parking.
A brief discussion followed in regard to possible parking locations at least for the employees. Ms.
Anderson stated she would pass the information along to Mr. McGarry and Bill Warner, Town Planner.

6. New Business
a. Budget

Ms. Anderson reported there is a little less than $6,000 remaining in this year’s budget; and perhaps
some of this funding could be used for the purchase of holiday decorations. Mr. Warner has indicated
there are at least 16 light poles proposed for the Tylerville sidewalk project. Ms. Anderson stated the
purchase of the decorations may need to be done in phases.

Ms. Anderson reviewed pricing: garland - $155 each, snowflakes - $321 each, and bows - $20 each
(should also replace those bows in Higganum). Discussion followed in regard to whether or not there’s a
time line to place an order (payable date), the cost of 8 garlands and snowflakes and 22 bows would be
$4,200 not including shipping; paying in installments; the purchase of additional storage boxes; and
where everything will be stored (perhaps a business in Tylerville will store the Tylerville decorations).

Ms. Anderson will get a quote for the decorations from the company.

Ms. Anderson spoke in regard to the Commission making a donation to the farmers’ market noting they
do not have sponsorships. With the additional funding, the market should be able to do more.

Economic Development Commission
10 March 2021
Approved Minutes 2



Mr. Aithal asked if the Shred It event had been paid for. Ms. Anderson stated it should cost about $350.
Mrs. Munster and Mrs. Sola stated they did not believe this event was paid for out of the EDC budget.
Mrs. Munster stated Public Works has to be in compliance with the State and that would be a good
argument in order to get this paid for via Public Works. Ms. Anderson found the email containing the line
item the invoice was previously paid out of. Mrs. Batzner asked for the line item. After Ms. Anderson
read the line item, Mrs. Batzner stated it was not Public Works. The Shred It event was paid out of EDC
funds. Ms. Anderson will ask if the Shred It event could be paid out of Public Works funds. Discussion
returned to the purchasing of the holiday decorations and the donation to the farmers’ market.

MOTION: Prem Aithal motioned to make a donation of $1,000 to the Higganum Farmers’ Market on
behalf of the EDC. Cindy Sola second. Motion carried unanimously

b. 2021 EDC Activities/Events Calendar

Shred It Event — Saturday, 8 May 2021, 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m., Community Center, 7 Candlewood Hill
Road, Higganum.

End of Christmas Lighting Event — Mrs. Sola stated there has been no thank you placed in the paper.
Ms. Anderson stated she did place a thank you to all volunteers as well as noting that Mrs. Sola would be
stepping down from coordinating this event and if anyone was interested in taking over this event, to
please contact her. Mrs. Sola was satisfied.

c. P&Z Public Hearing — March 18, 2021

Ms. Anderson noted as a P&Z member, Mr. Farina could not comment on this matter. Ms. Anderson
reported P&Z will be holding a hearing for an application for a tattoo parlor to relocate where Fork in the
Road was previously located. Ms. Anderson stated the original application was not noticed properly;
therefore, it must be heard again.

Ms. Anderson asked the Commission if they were in agreement to submit a letter in support for the
business. A brief discussion followed with all Commissioners voicing their support. Ms. Anderson will
draft a letter and email it to the Commission for review/comments. Ms. Anderson made it clear that all
comments are only to come to her and that there is to be no back and forth between Commissioners.

The hearing will be held in-person on Thursday, 18 March 2021, 7:00 p.m., in the gym at the former
Haddam Elementary School (HES).

7. Chairman’s Report

Ms. Anderson reported on the following: Rossi, 300 Saybrook Road — 1) Environmental Review -
Rossi is paying for the consultant conducting the additional investigation and the town’s consultant is
monitoring the investigation. 2) Brick Office Building — Mrs. Staskelunas asked if the building was
vacant again. Ms. Anderson stated yes. Scovil Hoe Buildings, 11 Candlewood Hill Road — Mr.
Warner is applying for a new round of grant funding ($750,000) to assistant in the cleanup of the site.
Board of Selectmen’s (BOS) Meeting — Former Marin Environmental Building, 7 Island Dock Road
— Mr. Warner reported at the BOS meeting that the P&Z approved a women’s wellness rehabilitation
center to move in to the location. Project is still moving forward. Board of Finance (BOF) — Mark
Lundgren is a new BOF alternate member. 2021-2022 Budgets — 1) Town’s - Up slightly due to salaries
and benefits. 2) Board of Education’s (BOE) — Increased due to salaries and benefits. Noted that
Killingworth’s share is up. The student ratio did change slightly - Haddam - $350,000 more and Killing-
worth $850,000 more. Steady Habit Brewing, 201 Saybrook Road — Things have fallen through;
however, Mr. Warner is trying to find funding and/or a developer to help finish the building. Road Runner
Pub, 12 Killingworth Road — Mr. Law asked if there were still plans to open. Ms. Anderson stated the
owners do have the ability to open; however, it is believed they have opted not to open at this time and
may do so when the weather gets warmer. A brief discussion followed in regard to the governor relaxing
the regulations of indoor dining.

Economic Development Commission
10 March 2021
Approved Minutes 3



8. Approval of Minutes

MOTION: Mark Lundgren motioned to approve the 10 February 2021 minutes as submitted. David Law
second. Motion carried with Mrs. Sola and Mrs. Staskelunas abstaining.

9. Adjournment
MOTION: Doreen Staskelunas motioned to adjourn. Cindy Sola second. Motion carried unanimously.
The meeting was adjourned at 7:37 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

Buwwy Hall Batzner

Bunny Hall Batzner
Recording Clerk

The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, 14 April 2021.

Economic Development Commission
10 March 2021
Approved Minutes 4



